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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of The Tata Pigments Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Tata Pigments Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of
profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7.

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

10.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) (“the
Rules™).

(c¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss [(including other comprehensive income)], the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure

A7,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1.

ii.

ii.

1v.

V.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 29 to the financial statements.

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2024, under the applicable
law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
Note 35 (ix) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 35 (x) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with Section 123
of the Act.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
that has been operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software,
except that the audit log does not capture the pre-modified values for changes, if any, made using
certain privileged access. Further, during the course of our audit except the aforesaid instances, we
did not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
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13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Pravin Rajani
Partner
Membership Number: 127460

UDIN: 24127460BKHGY0O8405
Place: Pune
Date: 16 April, 2024
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of The Tata
Pigments Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2,

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
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financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

e

Pravin Rajani
Partner
Membership Number: 127460

UDIN : 24127460BKHGYO8405
Place: Pune
Date: April 16, 2024
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

(a)(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 3 to
the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether
the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on
(or) are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our
commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the financial
statements does not arise. :

ii. (@) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management
during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management
is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to
book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory, and have been
appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.

iii. (a) The Company has not made investments in any companies / firms / Limited Liability Partnerships
except investments in fifteen mutual funds schemes, or granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances
in nature of loans, to any companies / firms / Limited Liability Partnerships/ other parties, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any companies / firms / Limited Liability Partnerships/ other
parties.

-
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(b) Inrespect of the aforesaid investments the terms and conditions under which such investments were
made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of the loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated, and the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in
payment of interest as applicable.

(d) Inrespect of the loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans /advances in nature of loans which have fallen due during the year and were
renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing
overdue loans/advances in nature of loan.

(f) There were no loans/ advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year, including to
promoters/ related parties [that were repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment].

iv.  The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or security
to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3 (iv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred in
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

vi.  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of
income tax and professional tax, though there has been slight delay in one case each, and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. We are informed that the Company has
applied for exemption from the operation of Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and actions have been
taken by the authorities as referred in Note 29 (a) to the financial statements to bring the employees of
the Company under Employees’ State Insurance Scheme, which is contested by the Company. Also, refer
note 29 (c) to the financial statements regarding management’s assessment on certain matters relating
to provident fund.

(b) The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at balance sheet date which have not
been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of | Nature of| Amount Amount Period to | Forum where

the statute | dues Demanded | paid (Rs.| which the | the dispute is
(Rs. In In Lakhs) amount pending
Lakhs) relates
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Central Sales Tax 1.15 | - 2002 — 2003 Deputy
Sales Tax Commissioner
(Appeal)
Central Sales Tax 79.14 4.09 2002 - 03 to Joint
Sales Tax 2005-06 & Commissioner
2015 -16 (Appeal)
Value Sales Tax 89.33 8.19 2009 -10 & Joint
Added Tax 2015 -16 Commissioner
! (Appeal)
Goods & | GST | 1717 1.20 2018-19 & Additional
Service Tax ' 2019 — 20 Commissioner
(Appeal)
Employee’s | Employee’s | 434.37 14.46 1996 - 2004, High Court
State State 2011 - 2015,
Insurance Insurance 2017 - 2019
Act

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. (a) Asthe Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the reporting

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

®

under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not raised funds
on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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x. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b). The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to
be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the Company has received whistle-blower
complaints during the year, which have been considered by us for any bearing on our audit and reporting
under this clause.

xii.  Asthe Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified
under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee
under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. (a)The internal audit of the Company is covered under the Tata Steel group internal audit pursuant to which
an internal audit is carried out every year. In our opinion, the Company’s internal audit system is
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.
xv.  Inouropinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the

Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group
has four CICs as part of the Group as detailed in note 35(x) to the financial statements. We have not,
however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and
complete.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section
135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial

Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Pravin Rajani
Partner
Membership Number: 127460

UDIN : 24127460BKHGY08405
Place: Pune
Date: April 16, 2024
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I-'Flrll Tata Plgmants Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

ASSETS

Non-current Assats
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capitsl work-in-progress
(c) Rignt-of-use assals
(d) Intangible assets
{e) Financial assets
(i) Nem cyrrant nvestments
(1i) Trade receivabies
(1} Otner Balances with bank
(v) Loans
(N QOther assets
ig) Deferred Tax Assels (net)
(h} Non current tax assel

Current Assets

(a) Inventories

{b} Financial assels
(i) Current invastments
{ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and Cash equivalents
tiv) Other Batances with bank
(v) Loans
(vi) Olher finencial assels

ici Other Assets

Total Aasets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(B) Other Equaty

Non-current Liabilities
(a} Financial Liabifities
(i) Lease liabitilies
{n) Trade payables
a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
b) Iotal cutsianding dues other than (i) (a) above
{iti) Other financial labilities
(b} Redi benafil obligati

Currant liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease Liabiities
(i) Trade Payabies
a) totai cutstanding dues of micro and small antarprises
b) total outslanding dues other than (i) (8) above
{iii) Other Financial Liabilites
(b} R 1t benefit chygat
{c) Other non financal liabifities
(d) Non cumrent tax liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Notas

3(A)
3(B)

10
8(A)

12
12A

10
10
B(A}
8(8)

B

13
13
14
15

AB)

13
13
14
15
16
128

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

As at March 31, As at March
2024 31,2023
2.23187 1,92063
105 35 4000
3673 9317
2794 3051
138.40 186.08
; 102
086 143
189.70 218 a1
4240 4284
- 262
2771.25 2.536.79
716.89 904,39
251163 1,402 15
5,020.18 4.276 96
266903 25475
275 36374
028 065
866 30 44
9.794.42 T
12,565.67 10.048 50
75.00 7500
6572.04 4788 47
5.647.04 3.863.07
320 3038
306.98 380,52
474 474
11434 114.34
48 22 430 35
074,43 1,150.93 |
36.18 58,11
2,108.96 965 22
2,143.65 2,481 82
153.66 123,00
202.86 198 77
14696 18978
51 88 -
4 84415 4,014 70

12,565.67 10,048.60

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial stalements

This 15 the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Price Watsrhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number 304026E/E300000

Pravin Rajani

Pafiner

Membersnig No 127480
Place Pune

Date: Apni 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors

i

Dinesh Agarwai Raijtv Mangal
Chief of Finance & Accounts Chairman
(DIN: 10090807)

foamspi

pS Hanvhare.
Anil Kumar Singh Harshana

Managing Direclor
{DIN: 08749172)

Place; Jamshedpur
Date: Apiil 16, 2024
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[The Tata Pigments Limited

Statament of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3ist March 2024 Amount in Rs. Lakhs
For the For the
Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| Revenue trom Operations 17 23,296 32 19,399 65
Il Qlner Income 18 183 07 98 56
il Total Income (1 + 11} 23,489.39 19,498.31
IV EXPENSES
(a) Raw materiats consumed 19 229319 351578
(b} Py of finished, i-finished and other products 20 843 57 133088
(c) Cnenqes in inventories of finishad goods. work-in-progress and stock- in -trade 21 156 97 (219.08)
{d) Xp on sefvice 12,835.95 B,168.79
(@) Employee benefil expense 22 1,958 97 1.833 14
(0] Finance cosls 23 12.37 1179
(@ Depreciation and amortisation expense 4(A) 28616 198.63
{hy Other expenses 24 2620.73 2467 48
Total Expenses (V) 21,007.91 17,808.29
vV Prolit before tax (Wi-V) 248148 1,690.10
VI Tax expense
{1) Curren tax 635.30 442 98
{2) Deferred tax 12 0.54 (342
Total tax expense (VI} 035.84 41858
Vil Profit for the year (V - VI) 1,845.64 1.250.54

Vil Other comprehensive Income
A) (0] Itams that will not be reclassified subsequantly to the statement of profit or loss

Sae accompanying notes forming parl of the financial statements
Ths is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even dale

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of tha Board of Directors

Pravin Rajan Dinesh Agarwal Rajiv Mangal
Partnar Chief of Finance & Accounts  Chairman
Wembershipe No 127460 {DIN: 10099807)
Htace Pune

Bile April 16, 2024
s rarhare

Anil Kumar Singh Harshana
Managing Director
(DIN: 09748172)

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: Agnil 16, 2024

gain/(i } on post employ defined benefit plans 1661 022
(u) Income taxomlems that wall not be ified subsequently o the of profit or loss (4.18) (0.06)
B) (i) ltems that will be reclassified subsequently lo the statement of profit or loss
(ii) Income lax on items 1hal will be reclassfied to profil or loss
Total Other Comprohensive Income 1243 0.16
IX Total comprahensive Income for tha year (Vi +VIH) 1,858.07 1,250.70
X Earnings per Equity share
{1} Basic(Rs) 31 2,400.85 1,667.38
(2) Dited (Rs) 31 2,460.85 1,667.39

ini Registration Number: 304026E/E300008
W“ ﬁ;wq : ﬂ“"""’ 34
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The Tata Pigments Limited
Stat it of Changes in Equity for the year ended

March 31,2024

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

For Price Watsrhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/£300009

Pravin Rajani

Parthet

Memitarstn No 127480
Flite Pune

Dwe Apnd 16, 2024

{7} Equity

Barticulars Total 1

Bainnce as apApni 1 2022 75.00

Changes in sgully shars capital :

Holance 8s sl March 31, 2073 75.00

Changos m equty share capdal

Balince na gt March 31, 2028 75,00

{b] Other Equity

Ratainsd Ganural Capltal Total
Earnings Ressrve Ressrve

Balance ae at March 31, 2023 3,339.03 1.445.77 017 4.788.07
Prafit for the year 1,845.64 . - 1,845.84
Diher Comprahensive Income 1243 - - 12.43
Drident paid i78.00) - - (75.00]
anhncn as at Marzh 39, 2024 5.122.10 1.449.77 0.17 8.572.04
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,183.33 1.448.77 0.17 3,613.27
Profil for the yaar 125054 - - 1,250.54
Other Comprehensive Income o8 - - 0,18
Dividond pain {75.00] - - (75.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.339.03 1.449.77 017 | 4.788.97
This is the Sta of Changes in Equity ref 10 in our report of even date

Bt

Dinesh Agarwal Rajlv Mangal
Chief of Finance & Accounts Chatman
{DIN: 10099807)

For and on behalf of the Board of Birectors

sy

AES Harnnbore
Anili Kumar Singh Harshana
Managing Director
(DIN :08749172)

Place : Jamshedpur
Date" April 16. 2024
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Yoo -6

The Tata Plgmants Linilied
Statemant of Cash Flows for the year ended 31, 2024
Amount in Rs. Lakhs
For the For the
Year snded Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Profit befora taxas 2.481 48 1.690 10
Adjusiments for
Depreciation and amortisation axpense 286.16 198.53
Interest income {7.01) (20.23;
Short term Capital Gain on mutual tund {180 37) (52 &5}
Change in fair value of Invesiment (5 69) (2,87
Finance Costsg 1237 11.79
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Property,Plant and Equipment (0.10)
Inventories write-down 5986 42 13
Operating Profit before changes in current/non current assets and ilabilities 2,648.80 1,847.54
Adj; for (incr )idecrease in operating assets
Inventories 127.82 (196 38)
Trade receivables (1.602.57) {1.885.53)
Other Balances with bank 360 39 1,347.39
Other Financial Assets current 512 14 44
Other Financial Assels non current Q57 064
QOther Assets current (59 58) 1.8
Qther Assets non current 28.70 526
Adjustments tor increaul(dacnuu) in operating llabilities
Trade Payables 73308 980.20
Other Financiai Liabilities current 30.86 17.23
Reti benefit obligations current 3.89 46.96
Retirement benefit obligations non-current 3089 (B.44)
Other non financual labilities (42.83) 49.25
Cash Genarated from Operations 2,263.74 2283487
Income tax paid {584.961 (428 0
Net Cash Flows from/(used in} Operating Activities 1,678.78 1,794 45
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activitios:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (803.74) {8046.63)
Proceeds from sale of proparty, plant and equipmeni - 1.73
Purchase of Cument investments {28,800.00) 112.800.00)
Proceeds from sale of Current investmants 27,876.58 11,852 66
Interes! income raceived 24.04 49.87
Net Cash Flow from/(used In) investing activities (1,503.12) (179194
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Repayment of panciple portion of leass iigbiities (56.11) (28.72))
Inlerest and other barrowing costs paid (8 D5) (6 05}
Inlerest pard on lease liabiities {6 32) [5.74)
Dividend Paig (75.00) (75:00)
Nei Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities (143.48) (115.51)
Net increase in Cash or Cash Equivalents 32.18 (113.00)
Cash ond cash equival as at the beginning of the year 25475 367.75
Cash and cash equivalonts as u he end of the year 286.91 254,75
Raconcilialion of cagh and cash equivalents as per
Cash in Hand 0.12 0.20
In Deposit Account 40.00 =
tn Current Account 246.81 254.55
Cash and cash equivalents as per note 10 286.93 254.75
Sew accompanying noles forming part of the financial slatements
Thisi s the  Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our repon of even date,
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartared Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dirsctors
Firm Regis\raﬂe: Number 304026E/E300000
SESS SN WSS
-7
Pravin Rajani Dinesh Agarwal Rajiv Mangal
Partnes Chvef of Finance & Accounts  Chairman
Memderstip No 127460 (DIN: 10099807)
Hlaza Pune
{Jate Apni 16, 2024
S
Anil Kumar Singh Harshana
Managing Direclor
(DIN : 09749172)
Place’ Jamshedpur
Date: April 16, 2024
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. The Tata Pigments Limited

Notes to the financial statements

2,01

2.02

Company Information

The Tata Pigments Limited ("the Company”) is a public limited Company incorporated in india with its
registered office in Jamshedpur, Jharkhand, India.

The Company Is one of the largest manufacturers of Synthetic Iron Oxide in India. Its range of products
include flooring colours in five colours under the brand name of Tata Red, Tata Black Tata Yellow, Tata
Green and Tata Blue. The Company alse manufacture dry cement paint under brand name of Cemplus and
Ecocem, water based emulsion paints, distemper, primer, wallplus putly, etc. through BPO route over the
past decade, It has diversified in to Industrial Decorative and Coating services and has been mainly catering
to Tata Steel group of companies and By-Product Management Business to Tata Steel

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“INR™) which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

As on March 31, 2024, Tata Steel Utilities & Infrastructure Services Limited, owns 100% of the Ordinary
shares of The Tata Pigments Limited, and has the ability to control the Company's operations.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorised for issue on 16" April, 2024

Material accounting policies

The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are
Iisted below Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these
financial statements, unless otherwisa indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(referred to as “Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
tIndian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the
Act

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of
certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values by ind AS.

Al assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule || to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash eguivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

The Directors of the Company have assessed its liquidity position and its possible sources of funds. The
Board of Directors are confident of the Company’s ability to meet its obligations in the next twelve months
from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis

2.03 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgement

in the preparation of financial statements, the Company makes judgements. estimates and assumptions

about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

cansidered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. /Trﬁ-
e
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The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of financial statements. which may cause material
adjustment ta the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, provisions and contingent liabilities and estimation of
employee benefit obligations as discussed below. Key source of estimation of uncertainty in respect of
revenue recognition and employee benefits have been discussed in the respective policies,

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (Note 3)

The Company reviews the usefu life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Notes 14 and 29)

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as result of 2 past event and it is
probable that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements

Retirement benefit obligations (Note 15)

The Company's retiremant benefit obligation are subject to a number of judgement including discount rates,
inflation and salary growth, Significant judgement is required when setling these criteria and a change in
these assumptions would have a significant impact on the amount recorded in the Company's balance sheet
and lhe statement of profit and loss. The Company sets these judgements based on previous experience
and third party actuarial advice '

2,04 Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an assat if it (s probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This
recognition principle is applied to costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment
and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and
maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognisad in the statement of profit and loss as
incurred.

Property, plant and eguipment is stated at cost/deemed cost, less accumulated depreciation and |
impairment Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Software costs are included in the balance shee! as intangible assets when It Is probable that associated
future economic benefits would flow to the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase
cost and then amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. All other costs on patents,
trademarks and software are expensed In the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred

Depreciation or amortisation is provided so as to write off, on a straight line basis. the cost / deemed cost of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. to their residual value. These charges are commenced
from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their estimated useful
economic lives or, in the case of leased assets, over the lease period, if shorter.

The estimated useful lives for main categories of property, plant and equipment and intangibie assets are:
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The Tata Pigments Limited

Tooo~1-9

Notes to the financial statements

2.05

2.06

Class of Asset Estimated Useful Life
Freehold building

Factory Building 30 years

Other than Factory Building with RCC frame structure 60 years

Other than Factory Building without RCC frame structure 30 years

Fences, Walls, etc 5 years

Plant and Machinery
Plant and Machinery used in manufacture of Synthetic Iron Oxide

Pigments — Reactors 20 years

Other Machinery 51o 15 years

Office Equipment

Computers and data processing units 3 years

Others ) 3to 5 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Vehicles

Motor Cycles 10 years

Other Heavy Vehicles 8 years

Intangible Assets

Computer software 10 years
Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying value of those assets
may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

Leases

Company assesses wheather a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in
which it is the lessee. except for short-term leases (leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and
leases of low vaiue assets. For short term leases and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. which is determined using the risk free rate
for the same tenor adjusted for the credit risk associated with the lease, security etc

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise fixed lease payments {including
in substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives: and any variable iease payments that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measure using the index or rate at the commencement date. Lease payments to
be made under reasonably certain extension options are alse included in the measurement of lease
liabllities

-2ase payments are allocated between the principal and finance cost. The finance cost is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liabilty for each period

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease

payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any -

fa 2
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Notes to the financial statements

2,07

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight-iine basis over the period of lease term and useful lifz of the
underlying asset whichever is lower |f a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or where it is
reasonably certain that the Company will exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date
of the lease

The Company has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard

i) applying single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar character
ii) accounted for operating leases with remaining lease term of less than 12 months as short term
lease,

iti) excluding initial direct cost for the measurement of the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application and

) using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are Imtially measured at fair value
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value measured an initial recognition of financial asset or financial
liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Financial assets
Classification of Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within 2
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
centractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets classified at amortised cost comprise trade receivables, investments, cash and cash
equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets.

Classification of Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if such financial assets are
held within a business model whose abjective is to hold these assets in order (o cullect contractual cash
flows or to sell such financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, assoclates and joint ventures)
which are not held for trading. has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments, Such an election is made by the Company
on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity investments. These
investments are held for medium or long term strategic purpose.

Financial assets not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, are
carried at fair value through profit and loss.
Financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss comprise of Investments in Mutual funds.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company recognises life time expected credit losses
for ail trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction

J02
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Notes to the financial statements

2.08

2.09

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance
2qual to twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected
creait losses is recognised if the credit risk of the financial asset has significantly increased since initial
recognition

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and équity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
nstrument.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is
significant

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to
state mansged retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes
where the Company's obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out a: each year-end balance sheet dale Re-
measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognised immediately n
other comprehensive income. The service cost and net interast on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) is
fecognised as an expense within employment costs. Past service cost is recognised as an expense when
the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits
are recognised, whichever is earlier. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet
represents the present value of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expecled to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related service are recognised based on actuarial valuation at the present
value of the obligation as on the reporting date.

Inventories

Inventeries are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 1s ascertained on a weighted
average basis. Costs comprise direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in oringing the inventories to their present lecation and condition. Net
realisable value is the price at which the inventories can be realised in the normal course of business after
allowing for the cost of conversion from their existing state to a finished condition and for the cost of
marketing. selling and distribution

Stores and spare parts are carried at lower of cost and net realisabie value.

Provisions are made to cover slow moving and obsolete items based on historical experience of utilisation
on a product.

/-_-r——-'r-;_h\_
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Notes to the financial statements
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2.12

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
canstructive) as a result of a past event. which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement,
the entity has indicated to other parties that it wili accept certain responsibilities and;

(b) as aresult, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will
discharge such responsibilities.

Income taxes

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Company's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary diffarences. In contrast, deferred
lax assels are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be availabie to allow alf or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
Dy the end of the reporting period The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying value of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same tax
authority and there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities within
that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the statement of profit and loss, except
when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the tax is alse recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in eguity

Revenue

The Company recognise revenue from transfer of gcods at point of time. The Company manufactures and
sells a range of paints products in domestic markel. Sale are recognised when the control of products are
transferred, being when the products are delivered o customers and at the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled to in exchange for goods or services

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue
is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probabie that a significant reversal will not occur. No element
of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30/60 days, which is consistent
with market practice ; 3

qa e ,"I 2 = \ 0
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The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements

2,13

2.14

215

' 2.16

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the customer receives and
uses the benefits simultaneously. The customer pays the fixed amount based on completion of the related
services on a monthly basis If the services rendered exceed the payment, a contract asset (unbilled
revenue) is recognised. If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised.
Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change
Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the
period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year As a consequence, the
group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable net of discount, taking into
account contractually defined terms and excluding taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government.

Dividend and Interest income

Dividend income from investment is recognised within other income when the Company'’s right to receive
dividend is established.

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is recognised under other income
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that assets net carrying amount on
Initial recognition

Cash Flow Statement

Cash fiows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and tax
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated based on the available information.

Segment Reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns,
internal organisation, management structure and the internal performance reporting systems. The
accounting policies adopted for the segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents inciudes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of

three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
The Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time
During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the

existing standards applicable to the Company =
) ./*’\ ne :’ :'\ 1
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The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements
3 Property, Plant and Equipments Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Bulldings]  Owned Plant] Furniture| Offics|  Vehicle Total
As at March 34, 2024 and Machinery and fixtures| Equipmants Tangible Assets|
Cost as at Apnl 1, 2023 602.30 2,071.82 .07 184.55 8.39 2,888.13
Addibons 60 00 393.27 2.12 66.40 - 521.79
Drsposais/dincard 2% - 2 £ - -
Cost as st March 34, 2024 662.30 2.465.00 35.19 24705 8.30 3,419.92
Accumulnled Depreciation as at Apri) 1, 2023 176.92 682.25 149 94.93 9.27 977.50
Charge for the yeer 283 139.96 2.96 w27 0.05 210.55
[hsposalsiaiscard = z
(Accumulited Depraciation as at March 31, 2024 205.23 822.21 17.09 134 20 9.3_2 | 1.188.05
Nel book vaiue as at March 31, 2024 452.07 1,642.88 | 18.10 113.75 0.07 | 2.231.87
Bulldings Owned Plant] Furniture| Offics| Vehicls Total
As at March 31, 2023 and M. Yy and f p Tangible Assets
Cost as at Aprll 1, 2022 590.04 1,234.79 23.01 107.98 8.29 1,875.00
Additions 236 845 55 10.24 78.98 937.13
Disposais/discard = 18.52) {0.18) {5.39) x {14.09)
Cost as at March 31, 2023 602.30 2.071.82 33.07 181.58 939 2.804.13
Accumulated Depreciation as at April 1, 2022 15240 S87.18 11.81 7.9 8.08 338.20
Charge for the year .52 103.42 264 20.99 1.19 151,76
Di /i . {8 35) (0.12) (3.99) - (12.48)
Accumuiated Depreciation as at March 31, 2023 1.?8_9_2 882.28 14.13 94 93 Lﬂ m&
[Net book value as at March 31, 2023 425.38 1.389.57 18.94 50.62 012 1,920.63
Note: 8) In respect of property of seit- tructed bullding on fand, tha land lease agreement is in the name of the Comgary, where the

mehmemmmwmt.'




The Tata Pigments Limited
Notaes to the Financial Statements

1{A) Capltal work-in-progress

Amount in Rs, Lakhs

(a) Ageing of CWIP
As at March 31, 2024 Amount in CWIP Tor a peried of
Loss than 1 More than
cwie -2 23 yesrs Total
year yoars y 3 ysars
Projects in propress 105.35 105.35
Projects lemporarily suspended - =
Total 10535 - - - 105.35
As at March 31,2023 Amount In CWIP for a pariod of
A Lesa than 1 Moare than
cwip S
_1 2.yun . 2-3 years 3 years Total
Projects in progress 40.00 | - - 40.00
Projects temporarily suspended - | B - .
|Total 40.00 | - - . 4000
{by Completk hedule for capital [ Is overdue or has ded lts cost« d to s
original plan:
As at Mareh 31, 2024 To ba complated in
Loss than 1 More than
_-C\NIP yoar 1-2 y_om_ _2-3 years 3years Total
Project 1 105.35 1056.35
\Project 2 . :
[Totat 105.35 | - . - 108.35 |
Completi hedule for capital v P s of has ded its cost dtoits
original plan;
As at March 31, 2023 To be completed in
cwe Lessthand | J2years | 23years | MOo8R | o
yeoar 3 = ) ysars
Projeci 1 18.04 - 18.04
Proiect 2 -
Total 16.04 - - - 16.04

Qoo -1-75
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(b Laase liabilities

1{B} Leases
(a) Hight-of-use assets

[ As at March 31, 2024 Right-ot-use

- _Bulidings |
Costas at Al 1. 2023 124.22
Aoty .
Spcanin a
Cost as st March 1, 2024 124.22
Accumlisted Deprociation as af Apni 1, 2023 31.05
Charge for the penod 56.44
Sapouals

Accumulated Depraciation as at March 31, 2074 87.49 |
Net book value as at March 31, 2024 | lﬁﬂ‘[
As at March 31, 2023 Right-of-use

_Buildings |

Coaras at Apil | 2022 .
Addilicns 124.22

F:pnwn =]
Cast as at March 31, 2023 124.22

|Accumulated Doprecation as at Aprl 1, 2023 -
Ghatge for the year 31.08

|Cusposals *
Accumulated Deprociation as at March 31,2023 3108
Nit book valuo as at Morch 31, 2023 93.17

| March 31, | March 31,

4 Intangible agsats

1 2024 2023
Curreni | 36.18 SB.11
|.'hr--i.' W i 3.20 36.38 |
| 39. 95.49
\ﬂzvmon( af lease liabilities "‘;::‘31 '

Opuning Balance as at April 01 9545

Add: Present Value of addition during the year -

Add! interest Expenses 632

Less: Repayment l 5243
[Clasing Bulance as at March 31 3938 | 9549

March 31, March 31, "I

2024 2023
Cost as at beginrung of the year 145.82 145.82
Aduitions 16.60 .
|Chaposals . |
[Cast as at ond of the year 162.42 Msﬂ
|Aecumulatod Amortinanon at Beginning of the year 115.31 99.49
Chasrge for (he year 19.17 1582
Disposals - .
Accumulated Amortisation at and of the yuar 134 48 116.31
Mot boak valus as at end of the yoar 27.94 30.51
4(A) Dupreciation and amartisation for the year
For the For the
y®ar ended |year
March 31 anded
2024 March 31,
2023
210.55 15178
684 31.05
1817 1582
286,16 |  198.63

Yooo—1~26
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Ihe |ata Pigments Limited )
Notes to the financlal statements Amountin Rs. Lakhs
As at March  As at March 31,
31,2024 2023
5 Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable valuy)
(a) Raw materials 134.64 149.34
(b) Semi Finished 7434 7170
(c} Finished goods 219.67 37117
(d) Stock in trade 78.08 87.47
(8) Slores and spares 20838 224.711
716,59 304,33
Value of inventorias above is stated afler provisions (net of reversal/ writs off) of Ry. 58.86 Lakhs (March 31,2023 Rs 42 13 Lakka)
for write downs to net value and p: for slow-moving and chsolste itema,
6 Investments
Fi ial assets d at Fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCH)
Unquoted Equity investment - .
10,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up (year ended March 31, 2023 :10,00D Equity shares of
Rs. 10 each tully paid up) in Nicco Jubfiea Park Limited *
Classifled as:
Non current®
Curment -
° Amount lower than the ding off narmn adopted by the pany
Financiai assets carried at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)
Unguotad Mutual Funds
Nit (March 31,2023 - 13,588 ) unlis in HDFC Mutual Fund -Direct Plan-Growth . 601.05
Nil (March 31, 2023-8,807) units in Kotek Liquki Fund -Direct Pian-Growth - 400.56
13,745 (March 31, 2023 -14,734 ) units in Bandhan Liquid Fund -Growth Direct Plan 400.08 400.54
20,048 (March 31,2023-Nii) units in DSP Liquidity Fund -Direct Plan-Growth 1,002 48 .
28,798 (March 31,2023-N¥)) units in Baroda BNP Paiibas Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 801.97
7.830 (March 31,2023-Nil) units in Mirae Assat Liquid Fund - Direct Plan 202.23
3,136 (March 31,2023-Nil} units in Invesco India Liquid Fund -Direct Plan Growth 103 85 -
TS A
Classifisd as:
Non curment .
Cument 2.511.63 140215
S8 s
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The Tata Pigments Limited
Nates ta the financial statements

As at March 31, 2024

Amount in Rs. Lakhs|

As at March 31, 2023

7 Trade Recsivables Non Currant Non Wt Current
Trade recsivables 10.53 1434 76.58 141358
Recaivables from related parties (refer note 34) 12587 5,533 95 109 48 289032
Less:Loss allowance - (1911 - (28.095)
Tota! trade rece/vables 136.40 5929.18 186.06 4,278 36

Non current Cument Non current Currant
Secured, considersd good * = 0.85 - 527
Unsecured, considered good 136 40 5928 23 188.08 4,271.89
Doubttul - 19.11 . 2685
Total . 136.40 §,948.29 186.06 4,303.91
Less Loss allowance - N {18 11} - L26.05]
Tatal trade roceivables 136.40 5,929.18 186.08 437536 |

* Security deposits received trom distributors

Trade Receivable ageing schedul
Outstanding for foliowing periods- from due date of payment As at March 31, 2024
Rarticulary ::::I:‘.:- Not Due :.'::::;: 61";';:::" "2 years 2-3 years Mo;:.tl:n g Total
Undisputed- considered good 181191 368111 743.36 17.00 278 010 2B 46 6,084.69
1,611.91  3,681.11 743.36 17,00 2.5 0.10 2848 §.084.59
Less: Loss all - - - - - {18.11) (18.11)
1,611.91 3,681.11 74336 17.00_ 275 0.10 935 606558

Trade Receivable ageing schedule
Outstanding for following periods- from due date of paymeat

As at March 31, 2023

Rerticules :::l'::; Not Due :.r:::ht:: 51";::':" 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;:.l?:n 3 Total
Undisputed- considered good 684.29 2976.28 793.34 081 Q28 018 3479 4,489.97
= 884.29 2,976.28_ 793.34 0.81 928 0,18 3479 448997
Less: Loss all - - - . = (26.95) (28.95)]
58429 297628 793.34 0.81 028 _ 0.18 784 446302 |

information about major customars

Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses their own credit rating process to assess the polental customer's credit quality and define cradit
limits by customer Credit imits and rating to a customer are reviewed each year. Trade receivables balance as ai March 31, 2024 of Rs. 3806.83 Lakhs {as|
8t March 31, 2023 of Rs 2786 30 Lakhs) is due from Tala Steel Limited, being the company's largesi cusiomer. Thers is no other customer who reprasants;

mate han 10% of the tot balunce of tade recelvables
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The Tata Pigmants Limited

|Nutes to the financial statements

8{A) Loans

(a) Loans to employee

8(B) Other finsnclal Assets

(a) Security deposils
{b) Interast accrued on deposits

Less Loss allowance

Classification of other financial assats:

Securad, considered good
Unsecured, considared good
Ooubtful

9 Other Non financial Asssts
(a) Capial advances
(b) Advance wilh public bodies
(c) Advance to related parties
(d) Other advances and prepayments

Classification of other non financial assets:

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considerad good
Provision for Doubtful Advances

10 Cash and Bank balances
Cash and cash equivaiants
{a) Unrostricted Balances with oanks
(1) In Cusmren Account

() In Deposit with original maturity of less than three months

{p) Cash in hand

Other Balance with bank :
{c) Unreatricied Batances with benks

(i} In Deposit with original maturity of more than three

months and up to twelve months

id) E with ded banks

(i) in Daposit Account

As at March 31, 2024

Amountin Re. Lakhs

As at March 31, 2023

Non curvent Current Non cument Cumg_i_‘
0.88 028 143 2.85
(X]] 928 1.43 0.65

As at March 31, 2024

A3 at Mareh 31, 2023

Kon current Currant

Nan currgnt Current

- 820 . 1285
. 0.48 - 17.49
: 880 - 3048
- a GL - 10.44
- 8.66 30.44
- l_ﬂ— - !ﬂﬁ

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non current Current

Non gurrent Currunt

: - 1542

152.18 201.81 163,864 166.28

. 54.00 50.84

37.52 82.48 3829 8101
—18870 338,30 218.41 278.73
188.70 338.30 21841 270.73
188.70 338.30 218.41 278.73

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non eurrant Current

Nan currant Current

246.81 25455
40.00
0.12 920
286, e
350.00
= 275 102 1374
: 275 g2 et

s

o Th

{ Chari:-:::a,i:-ti.zcnuntants :'
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The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statemants

11 (A) Other Equity

Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, As at March
2024 31,2023
Authorised:
100,000 Qrdinary Shares of Rs. 100 sach 100 00 100.00
(harch 31 2023: 100,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each) .
100.00 10000

lssued:
75,000 Ordinary Sharas of Rs. 100 each 7500 7500
{March 31, 2023: 75.000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each)

7500 7500

Subscribad and fully pald up:
75,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 75.00 75.00
{March 31 2023: 75,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each)

75.00 75.00
Dotails of shares held by Ulti hoiding pany or its subsidiarles
Parcentage of Snares held by Tata Stesl Utitties & Infrastruciure Services Limited 100 100
{HOkING Comparry )
Sharcs heid by promaters al the end of year 2024
% OF
NO OF % OF TOTAL CHANGE
34 NO. FROMOTERSEAME SHARES SHARES DURING THE
YEAR
1 Tata Steet Uulities & Infrastructure Services Limited 75.000 100% 525
!HOL’I]I!'!Q Sompary )
Total 75,000 100%
Shares hald by prombtars al the end ol year 2023
% OF
NO OF % OF TOTAL CHANGE
FLNO. RROMOTERSINAME SHARES SHARES DURING THE
YEAR
1 Tata Steei Utilihes & Infrastructure Services Limited 75,000 100% 10078
{Holding company)
Total 75,000 100%

Righis and restrictions attached to shares

Equity shares

Thes company has one claas of aguty shares having 8 par value of e 100 per shae. Each sharehoider etigible for an@ vote per
shars heid The dividend, I any, progosed by the Board ol Direstors is subject 10 e approvis of tha snarshaoiders in e ankny
Annual Gangral Meeting, excegt in zase of inteanm dividend, In the event of iquidabon, ihe ety sharehokden are eljible to racive
the remaining assets of the Company. in proportion (e Iheir shareholding

(a) Retained esarnings
he details of movemnent in retained eamings 13 provided in Statement of changes in equity,

{b} General Ressrve

Under the erstwhile Compamies Act 1956, a general reserve was creatad through an annual transfer of net profil at a specified
porcentage in accordance wilh applicable regulations Consequent to the introduction of the Companies Act, 2013 the requirement io
mandatonly iransfer a specified percentage of net profil to general reserve has been withdrawn
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The Tata Pigments Limited
2 to the i 1al stat ts

12. Deforrud tax Assets (Nat)
Deferrod tax liabilities
(a) Property, Plant and equipment and intangible assels

(b} Change in fair value of Investments

Deferred tax assets
(@) Provision for y, inventory & doubtful debts

(b Compensated Absences (jeave)

{c) Others

Net deferred tax assets / (llabifities)

124 The Incoms tax sxpenses for the year can bs reconciled
to the 9 profit as foll '

Amountin Rs. Lakhs

Charge! Charge/
{Credit) to the (Crudit) to the
As at March  Statemsnt of As at March 31, Statsment of As at March
31,2024  Profit and Loss 2023 Profit and Loss 31, 2022

141.50 14.11 127.38 580 121.40
(1.43) (0.89) (0.54) (0.52) 1 02)
140.07 13.22 126.35 538 121.47
43.16 {3.63) 46.79 0.84 4597
51.32 .7 48.05 {5.11) 53.18
87.99 13.04 74.95 13.10 61.85
182.47 12.68 169.79 8.80 160.98
240 0.54 4294 (3.42) 32.51

Profit fram continuing oparations before i tax exp
Tax rate of 25 17% (Year Ended Merch 31,2023 - 25.17%)

Tax effects of amount which are not deductible (taxable) in caicuisting taxable income:

Cormorats Soclal Responaibiity axpenses
Intarest on MSME

Others

Total tax s por St of Profit and Loas

Recognised as - Curent tax
Recognised as - Defemed tax (credit)

12A incoms Tax Assets

(a) Advance paymeni against taxes

[ Net of Advance of Rs. 00 00 lakhs ; year ended March 31, 2023 Rs, 2,035,389 lakhs)]

128 Income Tax Liabllities

(@) Income tax Hablities

[ Net of provision of Rs. 2,690.24 lakhs ; yesr ended March 31, 2023 Ra. 00.00 lakhs)}

As at March 31,  As st March

2024 31,2023
2.481.48 1.580.10
s asy
5.19 338
5.64 443
0.17 &.40
635.84 439.58
836.30 , 44208
0 54 {3.42)
262
- 2.62
51.89
51,89 -

Chartered 2 -
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Tho Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements

13 Trade payables

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

__Noncurrent _Current.  Noncument  Cument
(ay Trade payable - Micro & Small Enterprises (Refer note no -32) 30688 2,108.96 380 52 965 22
(b, Trade payables - other than Micro & Small Enterprises 474 1.876.31 474 2214 47
(c) Trade payabies - Related Party (Refer note no.-34) - 267,34 - 26735

Trade Payabie ageing schedule

) 311.72 4,252.61 385.26 3447.04

As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars ::SLI'I::. Not yet due Less than 1 year 1-2 yoars 2-3 years Mo;:::" 2 Total
Trade payable
{1 Undisputed dues-MSME 304 70 1,778.78 269.34 34.82 249 5,83 241584
{ii} Undisputed-Others 1.186 40 537 13 37368 20.46 4.60 18.05 2,148.39
(i) Disputed dues-MSME - . - . .
(iv) Disputed- Others - - - - - ‘ .
Total Payable due 1,501.10 231589 §63.00 5528 718 3188 4.564.33

Trade Payabie ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars ::::::: Not yet due Less than 1 year 1.2 yoars 23 yoars Mo;:.":" 3 Total
Trade payable
{i) Undisputed dues-MSME 27335 1.048 52 23.05 214 - 068 1.345.74
(ii) Undisputed-Others 72389 1,349 25 394 55 404 900 581 2.486 56
{in) Dispuled dues-MSME - . . - -
{iv) Disputed- Others . . - - -
Total Payabie due 99724 219577 41760 820  9.00 649 383210

14 Other financial ilabilities

(a) Creditors for other liabilites
@} Security deposils
i)  Prowisions and Other credil balances

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non current Current Non current Cument

11434 - 114.34 -
153.86 = 12300
114.34 153.86 114.34 123.00
— e m———n

The details of movement in provisions and other credit balances Is as below:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Recognised/{Realesed) during the year
Other reclassdications

Utilised dunng the year

Balance al the end of the year

15 Retirement benefit obiigations

(8)  Proviswn for empioyed benefits
(1) Postempioyment Defined Benefils
i) Ratining Gratuity
i) Pension Obligation
i) Paost relirement medical benefits
)  Other post retirement benefits {Laava)
v)  Other long term employee benefits *
{2) Otnher Employee Benefils

i) Provision for empioyees separation scheme

Ay at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

12300 10577
7187 48.10
41.01 __ (3087

153.86 123.00

Sl 22000

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

__Noncumrent  Current  Non current Current
3215 . 1204 =
382.72 28.28 402.79 2830
3843 474 3978 475
190 92 1285 176 34 14 53
156.68 151 18
001 o 001

“ Shontail in interest on Provident Fund based on actuarial valuation

16 Other non financial labilities

845.22 202,66 630.95 198.77

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Non current Current  Non current _Current
(8}  Advances received from customars 64 50 . 13542
{b) Employee recavenes and empioyer contributions 794 885
(cy  Statutory Dues (GST Excise duty, service tax, sales tax, TDS alc } 74 51 47 51

146.95 189.78
—_— e
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The Tata Migmeits Linited
Notes to the financial statements Amount in Rs. Lakhs
For the For the
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
17" Revenue from Operstions
(a) Sale of Goods
Sale of Products 5,020.77 6,858 31
Sale of Traded goods 1,108 04 1,604 53
() Selo of Services 18.030 12 10,507.30
(c) Other operating revenue
Others 22838 328.59
23,296.32 18,399,685
Note:
(a) Customers who contributed 10% or more to the Company's ravanue:
Tata Steel Limited 14,880 85 9.137 14
{b) Refer note 33 on from with cust disaggreg: on the basis of geographicel regions and major b
18 Cther Income
(8) Inlerest received on sundry ad d its and i tax refund. 701 4028
{b) Galn on sale of investmants (current) 180.37 5268
{c)  Change In fair vaiue of investment 589 2.07
(d) Insurance Claim Received 358
{e) Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.10
1231)1 B5.66
19 Cost of Materiais Consumed
Raw Material Consumed
()  Opening Stock 145.34 176.02
() Add: Purchases 27879 3.490.10
242813 3.685.12
(i) Less: Closing Stock 134 24 148.34
229349 351678
Raw Material Consumed 2.280.18 351578
EFITRCN 31578
20 Purchase of Tradsd Goods
(@) Oxide of tron 221.70 274.70
(b)  Decorative Products 621.87 1.065 68
843,57 1.3!_,2.65
21 Changes in n ies of finished goods, stock in trade and Semi Finished
Stock at the beginning of the ysar
{8) Finished goods I 1708.02
(b) Seml Finished 71.70 47.73
(€) Stock in trade 87.47 85.53
53034 311.28
Stock at the and of the year
(a} Finished goods 21997 37107
(b} Semi Finished 7424 .70
(¢} Stock in trade 70.06 8747
' 37337 53034
Changes in Inventories 158.97 {210.06)

Po-1- B
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The Tata Pigmaonts Limited
Notes to the financial statements Amount In Rs. Lakhs|
For the For the
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
22 Employes benefits expsnse:
@  Sai and wages, including bonus 188170 1,497.72
(b) Contribution (o provideni and other funds 144.89 188.30
(cy Staft wellare expenses 152.29 148.12
1;}59.9? X 1.833.14
23 Flnance Costs
(@) Interest expense 8.05 a.05
) Lease Obligation 632 5.74
12.37 11.79
24 Other Expenses
(a) Consumption of stores and spates 334.20 428.70
) Repairs to buiidings 48.61 5.58
{c) Rapairs to machinery BB 58 94 57
(@) Fuel oil consumed 580,85 73784
@) Purchase of power 25417 273.90
n Conversion charges 222,89 23477
@ Freight and handliing 249.83 260.51
th) Rem 21,84 48.88
(0] Brand Equity 58.00 48.15
()] Ratas and laxea 60.10 56.81
x) Insurance charges 1350 1483
[0} Commission and Discounts 78 97 8171
{m) Loss atiowance (ne! of write back) {0:38;
n Contract iabour 136 01 141.88
(0} Auditors remuneration and out-of-pockel sxpenses (Refer Nota 2)
As Auditors 2.40 1.80
For Other servicas 0.40
Auditors out-of-pocket expanses 1.18 1.18
{r) Legal and other professional coats 8826 50.49
@ Advertisement, promotion and salling expanses 32.20 88.09
r Traveding expensas 58.17 62.54
{8) Other general axpenses 311.30 330.85.
2.620.73 2967.48
Note 1 Other ganeral expenses includes expenditure charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in respect af Corporate Social Responaiblity
(CSR) activilles - Refer Note 26
Nole 2 Auditor Remuneration and oul of pocket expanses excludes GST of Rs 0.84 lakhs for the year ended March 31,2024 ( Ra 0.60 lakhs far
the year ended March 31,2023)
Mote 3 Other gt J includes an t of Rs 8.52 lakhs for the year ended March 31,2024 ( Rs 10.36 igkns for the year ended
March 31,2023) toward payment to non-executive director. Tha details are as below:
For the For the
year ended year ended
March 11, 2024 Marcn 31, 2023
A Uiiectirs S oey 1.15 248
()] Caimmission 537 781
6,52 10,36
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Notes to the financial Statements

25

25.01

Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel Any
expense recognised in relation to these schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the
perncd by them at rates specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet
are those relating to the prior month's contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the
reporting period. g

The Company has recognised, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024, an
amaunt of Rs. 63.02 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 59 24 Lakhs) as expenses under the following defined
contribution pian.

Superannuation fund:

The Company has a superannuation plan. Employees who are members of the superannuation plan are
entitled to benefits depending on the years of service and salary drawn. Separate irrevocable trusts are
maintained for employees covered and entitled to benefits. The Company contributes up to 15% or 150,000,
whichever is lower, of the eligible employee's salary to the trust every year. Such contributions are
recognized as an expense when incurred. The Company has no further obligation beyond this contribution.

Defined Contribution expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and loss

| Particulars | For the year ended March | For the year endad March 31
31, 2024 2023
. (Rs Lakhs) (Rs Lakhs) .
_Superannuation Fund ) 37.56 34.12
| Employee Pension Scheme 24.01 23.69
| EDLI (Employee Deposit Link insurance) | 1.45 ] 1.43 |
Total N 63.02 59.24 ]

Benefits to key management personnei -

;rParticuIafs— For the year ended For the year ended March

| March 31, 2024 31,2023
L IR (Rs Lakhs) _ (Rslakhs)
| Superannuation 2.54 2.24 1

25.02 Defined benefit plans:

The Company sponsors funded defined benefit plans for certain qualified employees. The defined benefit
plans are administered by a separate fund that is legally separate from the Company. The board of the fund
is required by law and by the articles of association to act in the interest of the fund and relevant state holder
in the scheme The board of the fund is responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the
fund.

[
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a)

b)

c)

I ez - | -

The Company operates following post-employment / other long term defined benefits plans:

Funded

Gratuity: The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employee at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days' salary payable for
each completed year of service Vesting accurs upon completion of 5 years of service. The Company
accounts for the liability for gratuity benefit payable in the future based an actuarial valuation.

Provident Fund: Provident fund benefits provided under plans wherein contributions are made to an
Irrevocable trust set up by the Company to manage the investments and distribute the amounts entitled to
employees are treated as a defined benafit plan as the Company is obligated to provide the members a rate
of return which should, at the minimum, meet the interest rate declared by Government administerad
provident fund. The contributions made by the Company and the shortfall of interest, if any, are recognised
as an expense in profit and loss under employee benefits expense.

In accordance with an actuarial valuation of provident fund liabilities based on guidance issued by Actuarial
Society of india and based on the assumptions as mentioned below. there is was a diminution in the carrying
value of plan assets and also a deficiency in the interest cost as the present value of the expected future
earnings of the fund is lesser than the expected amount to be credited to the individual members based on
the expected guaranteed rate of interest of Government administered provident fund.

Unfunded

Post-Retirement Medical Benefit (FRMB)- Ex MD - Under the unfunded scheme the Managing Director
receive medical benefit The Company accounts for the liabilities post-retirement medical scheme based an
actuarial valuation.

Compensated absences: Compensated absence which are not expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised based on an
actuarial valuation at the present value of the obligations as on the reporting date.

Other Retirement Benefit (ORB)- Ex-MD Pension — Other benefits provide under Unfunded Scheme include
pension payable to Managing Directors of the Company on their retirement and obligation is determined
based on an actuarial valuation

The Company is exposed to number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to government/high quality bond yields. If the return on plan asset is below the rate, it will create a
plan deficit,

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability however, this will be partially offset by an
increase in the return on the plan’s debt investment.

Longevity Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment and increase in the life expectancy of
the plan participants will increase the plan liability
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d) Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated Dy reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability

Details of the Retiring Gratuity Benefit are as follows:

The foliowing table sets out the amounts recognised in the financial statements in respect of retiring gratuity
plan.

. - Amount in Rs. Lakhs

| Description Year | Year

' ended | ended

| | March March

|- 31,2024 | 31,2023 |
A. | Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Present Value of |

Obligation
a DBO at beginning of the year 418.03 | 437.85 I
b Current Service Cost 2542 | 2596
| ¢ Interest cost | 2937 2788
I d. Actuarial loss/ (gain) Experience 5.88 | (1.63)
e. Actuarial loss/ ( gain) Financial assumption | 1033 | (16.45) |
| f Benefits paid (31.46) (55.58) |
g DBO at end of the year ‘ 457.58 | 418.03 |
B. C—hang_eﬁ Fair value of Assets S | ]
a. Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of the year 405,99 434.90 |
b. Interest income on plan assets | 28.49 27.78 :
c. Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate 10.36 (4.06)
| d Contribution by the employer { 0.01 295
e. Benefits Paid | (31.46) (55.58)
L | f F_air_\/_alue of plan assets at end of the year | 413.39 405._99_j

| C. Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and pr_es_ent value of defined
| benefit obligation

a. Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 413.39 405,99

b. Present Value of the Obligation at the end of the year | (457.58) (418 03) |

c. Amount recognised in the balance sheet (Retirement benefit , = =
obligation —Current)

d Amount recognised in the balance sheet (Retirement benefit (44.19) | (12.04) ’
obligation — Non Current)

| Description Year Year

| ended ended

March March
31,2024 312023

e = ——— s . Gratuity
D1. | Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
| a. Current Service Cost | 2542 25.96
| b. Net interest on net defined benefit liability/ (assets) 0.88 0.10
Total (a+b) recognised under employee benefit expense 26.30 26.06
AN

. s~
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(D2 T Expenses recognised in the Statement of Other Compreheme

| Income
C. Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to DBO experience 588 (1.63)
d. Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to DBO assumption changes 10.33 | (16.45)
e. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate | (10.36) (4.06)
Total (c+d+e) recognized under OCI | 586 (14.02)
Total expense recognised under Total Comprehensive Income during 3215 12 04

the year (8+b+c+d+e)

25.03 Investment Details of Plan Assets (Gratuity)

Particulars | %age invested | %age invested
Year ended Year ended
_ - ) March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 |
a. GOl and State Government Securities 59% 60%
b. Public Sector and Private Sector Unit Bonds 27% 24%
¢. Cash including Special Deposit Schemes 8% 9%
d. Property ! 0% 0%
€. Equity Shares of listed companies 8% 7%
f. Others (including assets under schemes of insurance) | 0% | 0%

25.04 Assumptions: The key assumption used in accounting for gratuity is as below

| Particulars | Yearended | VYearended
March31, | March 31,
2024 2023 | |
Discount rate (per annum) (%) 7% ' 7 3%
Rate of escatation in salary: Officer / Executive (%) 7% 7% '
Rate c_>f gscalation in sala‘ry: Uploqized (%) 7% 7%
Remaining average working Life (in Years) 8 years 8 years |

Projected unit | Projected unit

Method Used
! credit method | credit method

The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decrease/increase in the assumption used.

Assumption As at March | Change in Assumption Impact on Scheme Liabilities
31,2024 S| E—— :
Discount Rate | Increase by 1%. decrease by 1% |Decrease by Rs. 32.91 Lakhs /

' | increase by Rs. 37.65 Lakhs

| glary?scaiaron | -!_n?ré'asé_by ?%. decrease_by 1% | Increase by Rs.37.30 Lakhs /
| Decrease by Rs. 33.22 Lakhs

Assumbtion As at March

31,2023 |
Discount Rate Increase by 1%, decrease by 1% [Decrease by Rs. 29.79 Lakhs /
Increase by Rs. 34.08 Lakhs
|
'_Salary escalation Increase by 1%, decrease by 1% Increase by Rs. 33.86 Lakhs /
L Decrease by Rs. 30.15 Lakhs
2
/
- 7 a2
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The abave sensitivities may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it |
I5 unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

A. Expected Benefits payments for the year ending Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
1) March 31, 2024 - 23.48
2) March 31, 2025 24 57 45.79
3) March 31, 2026 47 14 46.70
4) March 31, 2027 35.05 36.82
3S) March 31, 2028 to March 31, 2032 = =
6) March 31, 2028 42.35 46.32
7) March 31, 2029 to March 31,2033 57.88 277.38
8) March 31, 2030 to March 31, 2034 214 51

B. Actuary's best estimate of the expected empiloyer contributions for the next year is Rs. 44.19 Lakhs
(March 31, 2023 Rs. 12.04 Lakhs)

C. Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 8 years (March 31, 2023: 8 years).

Details of Provident fund benefit plans are as follow:

The following table set out the amount recognised in financial statement in respect of provident fund benefit

plan
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

' Particulars [ For the year ended March | For the year ended March 31,
' | 31, 2024 | 2023
| Projected benefit obligation:

a) Total fair value of assets (including 1,609.95 1,493.09

_interest income) _ ) ]

b) Total PF ocbligation {(including interest (1,777.58) | (1,644.15)
leosh) |
| Net liability (shortfall in contribution) (167.63) ' (151.06)

' | Expenses recognised in Statement of 55.56 | 100.98

| Profit and Loss (including contribution and
I | shortfail as mentioned above) | ) _——

Key assumptions used for actuarial valuation are as below:

' Particulars | For the year ended March | For the year ended March 31
31, 2024 2023
 Discountrate ! 7% 3% -
EPFO return | 8.15% . 8.15%
| Expected rate of return on investment 8.15% - 8.15% |
\( /,_ T .
L\ < / 7 ‘-
:- \ / 'II
“: ..‘.\\“/ .
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|

Details of unfunded defined benefits are as follows: Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Description Year | Year Year |  Year
ended ended ended ended
March | March March March
31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 | 31,2023

PRMB Other retirement benefit |
B | {ORB)

|

A | Reconciliation of Opening and |
I Closing Balances of Present Value | [
of Obligation |

| a DBO at beginning of the year | 44.53 4730 431.10 | 424.05
|| bCurrent Service Cost | - 5 g ' -
| c Interest Cost 3.1 296 3066 2792
d. Actuarial (gains)/loss — arising 0.85 ‘ ' (1.51) 10.86 | (20.66)
| from change in financial ‘
_ . assumption |
e Actuarial (gains)/loss — arising | (0.43) 345 (33.74) | 32 53
from change in experience |
assumption
f. Actuarial (gain)/ioss - |
| demographic assumptions |
|

g Benefits paid (3.88) | (7.67) | (27.86) (32.74) |

| h. DBO at the end of the year 4417 | 44.53 | 411.01 431.10

| B! | Expense recognised under | .

employee benefit expense

_a. Current Service cost 1 - - | -
b.Interest cost | EXT 2.96 30.66 | 27.92

B2 | Expense recognised under OC! | |

c. Actuarial (gain)/ ioss 0.42 | 1.94 (22.88) | 11.87
d. Expense recognised in the 3.53 4.90 7.78 3879

| statement of profit and loss during
the year (a+b+c) | | [

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caiculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liabilities.

PRMB:
A. Expected Benefits payments for the year ending Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
1) March 31, 2024 - 492
2) March 31, 2025 4.91 469
3) March 31, 2026 4.66 445
4) March 31 2027 4 40 4.21
5) March 31, 2028 413 3.95
8) March 31, 2029 to March 31, 2033 - 15.86
7) March 31, 2029 386 -
8) March 31, 2030 to March 31, 2034 15.15 =
9) Beyond Ten Years 15.91 17.80

B. Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 7 years (March 31, 2023: 7 years)

e,

\

L =

\ .r?

%
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Other retirement benefit (ORB):
A. Expected Benefits payments for the year ending

1) March 31, 2024
2) March 31, 2025
3) March 31, 2026
4) March 31, 2027
5) March 31, 2028

6) March 31, 2029 to March 31, 2033

7) March 31, 2029

8) March 31, 2030 to March 31, 2034

9) Beyond Ten Years

Amount in Rs, Lakhs

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
- 29.32
29.26 29.81
29.58 30.18
29.76 30.38
29.57 3041
- 145.20
29.57 -
137.68 -
226.98 259.54

B. Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 8 years (March 31, 2023: 9 years)

Details of compensated absences are as follows:

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Description

) 'Year Year
ended ended
March March

31,2024 | 31,2023
Leave Salary

T|_Raonciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Present Value of ' |

Obligation |
[ | a. DBO at beginning of the year 186.07 ' 202.0@
| b. Current Service Cost - 12.10 1218
| ¢ Interest Cost B _ 13.09 1293 |
d. Actuarial (gains)/ioss | 1.05 [ (17.24) |
| e Benefits paid - - | (1347 | (2389)
_f DBO at the end of the year | 198.84 | 18607
| B i Expense recognised ' [
I
| a Current Service cost B | 1210 1219
|'b._Interest cost - 13.09 1293 |
¢. Actuarial (gain)/loss ! 1.05 | (17.24)
d Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the | 26.24 | 788

L year (a+b+cj

25.05 The expenses for the above mentioned benefits have been disclosed under the following line items:

i) Compensated Absence and ORB - under Salaries and wages, including bonus

iiy Gratuity and Provident Fund - under Contribution to

i) PRMB- under Staff Welfare Expense.

W—

provident and other funds.
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25.06 The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1% in the assumption

FEIE e e N
| As at March 31, 2024 o - ) B
PRMB - D S— ~ |
| Particulars __| Changes in assumption | Impact on Scheme Liabilities |
Discount Rate Increase by 1%, decrease by Decrease by Rs. 2.71 Lakhs/ Increase by
1% Rs.3.06 Lakhs
_'_C_oapiéhsated Absence . ]
Discount Rate Increase by 1%, decrease by Decrease by Rs. 14 59 Lakhs / Increase
' 1% by Rs.16.72 Lakhs
' Salary escalation Increase by 1%, decrease by Increase by Rs. 16 57 Lakhs / Decrease
1% by Rs.14 72 Lakhs
|
_ Other Retirement Benefit - Ex Director Pension _ |
Discount Rate Increase by 1%, decrease by Decrease by Rs. 34.44 Lakhs / Increase
1% by Rs. 39.90 Lakhs
| Pension Escalation | Increase by 1%, decrease by | Increase by Rs. 37.72 Lakhs / Decrease |

1% | by Rs.33.23 Lakhs
|

| As at March 31, 2023 ,

| PRMB
Discount Rate Increase by 1%, decrease by Decrease by Rs. 2.77 Lakhs/ Increase by
1% | Rs.3.12 Lakhs
Comp_engated Absence ' - 7
Discount Rate | Increase by 1%, decrease by | Decrease by Rs.13.46 Lakhs / Increase
1% | by Rs 15.44 Lakhs
|
' Sélary escalation Increase by 1%, decrease by | Increase by Rs.15 34 Lakhs / Decrease
i 1% by Rs 13.63 Lakhs
 Other Retirement Benefit - Ex Director Pension
Discount Rate Increase by 1%, decrease by Decrease by Rs. 36.97 Lakhs / Increase
1% by Rs. 42.97 Lakhs
" Pension Escalation " Increase by 1%, decrease by_ 5 Increa?b; Rs. 40.79 Lakhs / Decrease |
| 1% | by Rs. 35 81 Lakhs
26. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure

Other General expenses include amount incurred for Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure as
required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
rX , = RsLakhs = Rslakhs
Amount required to be spent as per Sec 135 of the ‘ 20.46 13.34

__ Companies Act
Amount spent during the year on
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset = -
i On purpose other than (i) above 20.63 13.35

There is excess spent amount of Rs 0 17 lakh as of March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 0.01 lakh)
and the excess expenditure incurred during the year ended March 31, 2024, is being carried forward to
the next financial year P

Lo @
f/‘\\\
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27.

27.01

Financial instruments

Capital Management

The Company's Capital Management is intended to create value for shar
achievement of long-term and short-term goals of the Company
capital required on the basis of annual operat
equity contributed by shareholders. The Com

27.02 Gearing Ratio

27.03

The gearing ratio at th

e end of the reporting pericd was as follows:

eholders by facilitating the
The Company determines the amount of
ing plans. The capital structure of the Company consists of
pany does not have borrowed funds.

| Particulars | As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
. = (Rs Lakhs) (Rs Lakhs)

i Debt - -

|_Total Equity 6647.04 4,863.97

_Net Debt Equity Ratio

Disclosures on Financial instruments

This section gives an overview of the si
additional information on balance sheet

gnificance of financial instruments for the Company and provides
items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of
financial assets, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2.09 to the financial

siataments

Financial Assets and Liabilities

The following table presents car,

and liabilities:

As at March 31, 2024

rying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Financial Assets

Investments
Trade receivables

Cash and cash
equivalents

Other balances with
bank

Loans

Other financial assets

| Amortized

|
‘ 6,065.58
‘ 286.93

275

1.14

8 66

A\

Fair Value
| Cost | through OCI

| Fair Value
through Profit &
Loss (FVTPL) |

Total Carrying
‘ Value ‘

2,511.63 |

2.511.64 |
6,065.58 |

286.93

275

1.14

8.66

Sh
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. As at March 31, 2024

Financial Liabilities _i Amortized | Fair Value | Fair Value Total Carrying |
Cost through OCI | through Profit & | Value |
el | Loss(FVTPL) )
Trade Payable | 4,564.33 - - 4,564.33 |
Other financial liabilities | 268.20 - - | 268.20 |

As at March 31, 2023

Financial Assets | Amortized IFair Value | Fair Value | Total Carrying—|

| Cost through OCI | through Profit & | Value
B g ] L | Loss(FVTPL) - 1}
Investment : - - 1,402.15 | 1,402.15
|
Trade receivables 4,463.02 - | - | 4,463.02
|
Cash and cash 254.75 E - 254.75 |
equivalents ' |
Other balances with | 364.76 : | 364.76 |
bank |
Loans 2.08 | - . 2.08
| |
Other financial assets 30 44 - = 30.44
As at March 31, 2023 S :
Financial Liabilities ' Amortized | Fair Value 'r Fair Value | Total Carrying |
| | Cost through OCI | through Profit & | Value |
| Loss(FVTPL) ! |
Trade Payable 3,832.30 - - 3,832.30 |
Other financial 237.34 - | - 237.34

| labilitles . .

Fair value hierarchy

The foilowing table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
Initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Leve! 1 to Level 3, as described below.

Quoted price in an active market (Level 1);

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted price
(unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or liabilities This category consists quoted
equily shares, quoted corporate debt instruments and mutual fund investments

Valuation techniques with observable inputs {Level 2);

This level of hierarchy Includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly
(i.e.. as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level Sk

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs that are not based

on observable market data (unobservable inputs).  Fair values are determined in whole or

in part, using a valuation model based on assumplions that are neither supported by prices from

observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on availabie market
Fa 1819

A O
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27.04

27.05

data

Some of the Company's Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

‘ . As at Fair Value | Valuation techniques
Financial hierarchy | and key inputs
Assets | [

| "~ March 31 2024 March 312023 | [
|

I Sy | Seems — ] il ! -
| Investment in | Rs. 2,511.63 Lakhs Rs 1,402 15 Lakhs J Level 1 NAV  from mutual |

Mutual Funds | funds
Notes:
i) Current financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to the
fair value.

i) Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quotations/NAV of the
respective mutual fund scheme. The fair value in respect of the unquoted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured and is not expected to be material to these financial statements.

iii) Management used its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However,
there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore. for substantially all financial
instruments. the fair valle estimates presented above are nat necessarily indicative of all the
amounts that the Company could have realizad or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates.

As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported at each repaurting date.

iv) There have been no transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2023.

Financial risk management objective

In the course of its business the Company i1s exposed primarily to fluctuations in interest rates. equity
prices, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The
Company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other
risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate and credit risks. The risk
management policy is approved by the Board of directors. The risk management framework aims to:

i) Create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate
fluctuations on the Company's business plan.

i) Achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expectéd earning
n advance.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that
may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may
change as a result of changes in the interast rates, equity price fluctuations, iiquidly and other market
changes Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasenable accuracy.
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28.

Interest rate risk management

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk for working capital requirements. The Company does not
have any borrowings.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to
the centractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of
deterioration or creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. Financial instruments that are subject to
concentration of credit risk, principally consist of investments, trade receivables, loans and derivatives
financial instruments. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of
credit risks except as disclosed under note No. 7.

Liquidity risk management

Liguidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannct meet its financial obligations. The objective of
liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per
requirements. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits and scheme of mutual funds,

which carry no/low mark to market risk

The table below provides the details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities.-

Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2024 Amount in Rs. Lakhs
[ | Carrying Contractual | Lessthan | Between | More than
| amount Cash flows | 1 year 1-5 year S year
Non derivative financial liabilities
_Trade Payable | 456433 | 4.564.33 447399 | 8434 -
Other financial 268.20 268.20 1563.86 ' 114.34 =
liabilities . | o
Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2023 Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Carrying | Contractual Less than "~ Between More than
| amount | Cashflows |  1year |  1.5year __ 5year |
__Non derivative financial liabilities )
Trade Payable 383230 | 383230 3,447 04 | 385.26
_ | |
Other financial | 23734 | 237.34 : 123.00 | 114.34 =

liabilities | [

Proposed Dividend

The dividend declared by the Company is based on profit available for distribution as reported in the financial
statement of the Company On 18™ April 2024, the Board of Director have proposed a dividend of Rs
2666.67 per ordinary share aggregating Rs, 2000 lakhs in respect of the year ended March 31, 2024, which
is subject to approval of shareholder at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
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Amount in Rs. Lakhs|

As at March As at March 31,

31, 2024 2023
28  Contingent Liabilities and commitments

(a)  Contingent Lisbillties
a Sales Tax demands against which appeals are pending 17179 266 21
b. GST demands agalinst which appeais are pending 1717 1717
¢ Claim by ex C & F Agent - 14.27
d Entry Tax demands - 59 15
e Employees State Insurance matters 43437 414.09
[ Claim for Security Service 911

(b) Capital Commitments
Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be execuled on capilal account and not 43133 21945

pravide for

(¢)  The Company has evaluated the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional

Provident Fund Commissioner (Il) West Bengal® and the related circular (Circular No. C-1/1{33)2019/\Vivek da Vidya ir/284) dated March 20,
2019 issued by the Empioyees' Provident Fund Organisation in reiation to non-exciusion of certain alk from the ition of "basic wages” of the
relevant employees for the purpases of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees’ Prov Funds & Mi Y@ous Provisions Act,

1952 In the ent of the manag these amounts are not payable. The aforesaid matter is nol likely lo have a signficant impact and
accordingly, no provision has been made in thase financial statements.

30 The Code on Social Security, 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 {'Code’) relaling to employee banefits during employment and posi-employment received Presidentlal assent on 28th
September 2020 and has been published in the Gazstte of India. However, the date on whuch the provisions of the Code will come into effect has not busn
nolified. Further, related Schemes and Rules are also awaited.

The Company is not reguired o account for any impact arising out of the Code in its financial stataments, pending such notification

31 Earnings per Share

Rs. per share Rs. per strm,

.F;r::sl) Irom operation aitnbulable to shareholders ol the Company - for Sasic and Diluted EPS { Rs 1,845 64 1250 54

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic and diluted 75,000 75,000
eamings per share (Nos.)

Basic Earmings per share 2,480 85 1,867 39

Diluted Earnings per share 2,460 85 1.867.39

There are no diluted securities issued by the Company
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Aa st March As at March 31,
31, 2024 2023

32 Dues to micro and small enterprises
The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Daveicpment Act, 2006 MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant (o the said MSMED Acl are as follows (refer
note 13)
Pnncipat amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 241594 1.345 75
Interest due lo suppliers regisiered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end . 1591

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 50.65 1118
appointed aay during the year) but without adding the iMeres! speched under the MSMED Act

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 5065 27 06
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11 SEGMENT REPQRTING

Primary S Inf {Busi L Amount in Re. Lakhs
Particulars Pigments & Servics Contrast Unaliocable Total
Paints
[Seymunt revenus
Ewtemna revenue 7.266.18 16,030.12 19307 2348039
(9,895.90) {10,507.30) 8 1) {19,496.31}
inlat Segmant revenue - - -
) (3} “) 2]
Thithil revenue 7,200.18 16,030.12 193.07 2348939
{8.895.90) {10,507 30} (95.11) (19.488 31)
Segrant “malts Sotore france Gosh, oxsepmenal Tems {(274.89) 2,575.88 193.07 2.493.85
el fax
139,20 {1,745.04) (95 11) (1,701.88)
Less. Finance Cost 12.37
(179
Frof before tax 248148
{1.690.10)
Tax axpenses 63504
{439.56)
Fratt stter tax 1,845.84
(1,250.54)
Sagment Assets 4,30020 871218 285329 12,585,67
(4,429.00) {2,834.08) {1.785.48) {10,04.60/
Segment Liahiliea 3.797.43 212121 . 8,910.84
(2,076.59) (2,208 04) - 15.184.63)
Capitat sxpandiure (337.43} #4117 803.74
{189.09) (708 07) (896.00)
Segment deprecistion 213.80 T0.38 - 2n6.10
(175.28) (23.35) v (10.63)
Figure o1 GracKa! INGCAtY Brevoul yaer Humcar
Year onded Year ended
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
{Segment Revenue
Wittirt indis 23,487 90 10,474 89
Oulside india 21.49 2342
ICac-uJ Expenditure
| Within incia 800.74 896.00
| Oumide incia :
Bugmiant Axsets
Wianin indis 12,585 87 10,048 60
Quiside mdia =
Additional Information :

1) The Comgany nas discioded Sluminess Segeient 38 tna prmany segment Segmunts have bees danifed taking nto sccount e nature of ol
praducts, tne aiffecing naks a0 retliens. e argansatonal struckite and intemal mperting spstem Ths Company's operuton pragerrnanty relsts iof

MEwfsciiier of Oxdu 3t ron antt Decorative Froduct and cther Service Contract

2) Segsrient R e, S Resuls,
28 also i ona basls. The

are shown as

which am not directty

Aswels and Segr Liabifitles inciude the respective amounts identtfiable lo asch of the tagmeris]

fothe b

are shown &% Unpiocaied

Assats and Rabiities that cannct be alk b the

asssts and limbliibes respectvely.
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34 Related Party Transaction :

Amount In Rs. Lakhs

Description of Transsction

Name of the Related Party

Relatlonshlp

Year onded| Year ended|
March 31, 2024{ March 31, 2023

T (L i 722 &
Surcnasa of Raw Matenals ata Steel Limited ) Ultimate holding compeny 112894 1722585
The Tinptate Company ot ind:a Limited Fellow Subsidary of Holding company 5185 3171
Puicnase of Power Tata Steef Limited Ulumata hoidirg company 254 17 273350
Purchase of Fuel Tala Steel Limted Uitmate holcing company 580 85 737 34
Purchase of '~atar Tala Stesl Limitea Ultimate holding company 6319 65 88
Purchasa ot Consumable Indian Steel & Wire Products Lid Failow Subsidiary of Hoidng company 043
Sale cf Products Tata Steel Lim:ted Uitmate holding company 002 3060
Recewing of Services
Medical Charges Tala Steel Limited Uiumate holding company 58 58 5653
Other Sxpenses Muncipal Charges | Tata Steel Limted Uiimate holding company 3436 42 40
intamal Audtt fees Ta:a Steel Limied Ulimate holding company 1593 1914
Salary & Wages -Daputabon Charges®| Taia Stael Limited Ulbmate hokding conpany 42714 a7 21
SAP Maintenance fees Tas Stee! Limitag Ulumate hoking company . 15162
Other Expenses Rent Tata Steet Limited | Uttt holding Sompny 5839 5339
Accomodation Charges Tata Steel Limited Ulbmate hokiing company 2159 19 49
Safety & Other Services Tata Stesi Unities & Infrasiructure Services Lid.  |Halding company 8207 5233
IT Maintsnence & Others Tata Steel Limied Ultmate holding company 1461 1008
CSR Tata Stesl Foundaton Uttimete holding company 1084 .
Saia ¢! Servicas - Panting Tata Steel Limied Ulumate ho'd:ng company 14,880 63 9,106 54
The Tinpiale Company of india Linvied Fetlow Subextary af Holkiing company 9133 21141
Neaianchal Ispat Nigam Ltd Faliow Subskhary of Holaing company 142294 582 29
Tala Steei Utlties & Infrastructure Servicas Lid  [Holding company 1718 46,53
Tala Steei Long Product Lid Fellow Subsidiary of Hotding company 6553 .
Himalaya Steel Mill Sarvices Pvt Ltd Joint Venture of Holding Company - 147
Angul Enargy Lid Feilow Subsidiary of Hoiding company 7963 7917
TRF Limtted Associate of Holding Company 44 87
Tata Steel Minining Limitea Faliow Subsidiary of Hokiing company 853
Dividena pawd Tala Steel Uthues & Infrastructure Services LI |Hoiding company 7500 75.0C
Managenal Remuneravon Mr Umesh Kumar Singh Managing Dizector (Ex-MD) - 67.45
Mr Ani Kumar Singn Harshana Managing Dvector 13131 6015
Mr Dinash Agarwal Cnief of Finance & Accounts 48 98 4026
Nature of Qutstanding Name of the Relaled Party Relationship Year ended| Year ended
1 March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Tjutsianding Payabia Tata Stesl Limitec Uttiraite hoiding company 23020 21788
Tata Steel Ltitbes & infrastructure Services Lid  |Hokiing company T 14 49 49
Cuistanding Recaiveble Tata Steel Limied (including erstwhile Tata Steel | Lipmate holaing company 5,287 51 2,786 30
BSL)
indian Steel & Wire Progucts Lta Foltow Suoba:diary af Holdling company 108 108
Tata Stesl UlliLes & Infrastructure Services L1d  |Halding company 2990 4322
TRF Lto Aesgciate of Holong Company 28 54 784
Tng Tinplate Company of india Limited Fallow Subsidiary of rokding company - 7 S0
Neeianchal Ispai Nigam Lid Feflow Subsidiary of Holkdmg company 28743 9945
Angul Energy LId Fetow Subsidiary 2078 442
Aavance Paid Tata Stesl Limited Ulimate holding company 5400 8009
The Tinplate Company of Ing:a Limited Fellcw Subsidiary of Holding company 857
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35. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule Il :

(i) Details of benami property heid - No proceedings have been imtiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder

(i1} Wilful defauiter - The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter By any bank or financial institution or government or any government authonty
(1) Relatonship with struck oM companies - The Company has ne transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956
(] Compliance with the number of layers of companies - The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

(v) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements - The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on
current or previous financial year

vil Registration of charges or salisfaction with Registrar of Companies - There are no charges or satsfaction which are yer 1o be registered with the Registrar of
Companies beyond the stalutory period

{40l Fair vaiuation of investment property The Company does not require fair valuation since there are no investment properties.

(vill Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property: The Company has not revalued its property. plant and equipment (including right-ol-use assets)
o intangible assets or both dunng the current or previous year

{ix) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
1 any other person(s) or entity(ies} including foreign entites {"Intermiadiaries”) with the understancing whether recorded in writing ot otherwse, that the
Injermedinry shall. whether. directly or indirectly, lend ar invest in other persons or entities indentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Uinmate Beneficiaries™) pr provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{x) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in wnling or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly. tend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
o on behaif of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the ike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

l#i) Tnere 1s no iIncome surrendered or disclosed as income during the cufrent or previcus year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1861, that has not
bean recorded :n the books of account

|11} Tne Company has done an assessment ta identify Core Investment Company (CIC} [ including CIC's in the Graup ] as per the necessary guidelines of Reserve
Hank of India { including Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). The Companies identified as CIC's at Group level are Panatone Finvest
wimited. Talace Pnvate limited, Fincare Business Service Limited, TATA Industries Limited , TATA Sons Private Limited TMF Holdings Limited and T S Investments
Limiteg

(xiii) Detals of ciyplo currency or vitual currancy - The company has not traded or invested in crypta cumency or viual cufrency dusing the currenl or pravious year
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36 Ratio Analysis ;
Ratio | FT |anmu %ol Rewson for variance
Perlod [Period  |Variance
Current Ratio Cument Aszet Current 202 187 818%
iabits
Dabi-Equily Ratio Total Dabt Aversge NA NA/ NA|
oquity
Debt Service Coverage Ratio EBIT Debt Sernce NA NA NA{
Ratum on Equaty (%) Profit after tax Average A207%|  20.25%| 282%
Shareholder's
sgumy
Inventory lumovar Rasio (in Sale of Avarage 42 35 18 28%
Daye) Pmauct | inventory
Trade recereabing tmaver Revenus from | Averags Trade a2 s 2497%
Ratio {in Days} Opemtion Recsivable
Trade payable tumaover Rallo Expensas | Avsrage Trade 74 70 To%
{in Days) Payabls
oot =acdal tumawer Rate (n | Revanua from Average L ] [ 1] 9.14%
Days) Gperation Working
Captal
Net profit ratio (%) Profil afier tax | Totai Revenus 7 86% B41% 1.44%
|
Retuin an Capital smplayed EBIT Aversge 4318%| J8.85% 4%
%} Capita)
Empioysd
Ratum on investmant (%) Income from Average 11.80% 516% 8.53%
rugstmiont | immextment
Natss

| EBIT: PBT+Fmance Costsinsrest on FD

4 Saie of Product: Sale of Manufactured goods + Sale of Trading goods

i Incorne from Investmant: Bhor term Capital Gain+Change in Feir value of invesments Imisrest of fixed depesii
v Average Sharsholdar's squdy : Qmmmms:&.ﬂ:.m.w
Sharsholder's aquty Equty + Othar Equity

w Average inventory Jmmmnzn_-.mummn

v Average Trade Rw:mmam;m-_amimm
nAwrmw:Wn_‘m;mm
mewwuc-w:mm;;m-_wmm

Working Capial: Current Asset- Current Lisbilty

viu Average Cagital Emplaysd M:mimazzm_msw
Capital Emplaysd Equity Share Capilel + Other Equity

x Average Invesiment URaniu imsestnent s Siokog nvesiment
2

Food Deposts +Mutual Fund

4 Expenses: Total Expenses - Finance Cost - Dapreci and i - Bensfi E;

in respect of Retinement Benifits -

and Fo Exchy GainlLoas

Other axpenses with resped to Rayalty, Rutes & Taxes, Provision for Doubiiul Dabts & Ady Pravision for

For Price § L CoCh o & Lip

Frm Regutratian Number: 304026E/E300009

RS Sy .

Pravin Rajan Dinesh Agarwai
Pustner Chief of Finance & Aztsunth
Marnbership Numbaer. 127450

Placs: Pune

Date Apri 18, 2024

For and on behaif of tha Board of Director

Mhnomywo

(DiN: 10099807)

ﬁw

Anil Kumer Gingh Hasshana
Managing Director
{DIN : 09740172)

K

Place Jamshadpur
Dats : Aol 18 2024 |

oo -5l



